ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 14, 2017
3:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator David W/ son

Senat or Cathy G essel

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senat or Denni s Egan

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS
Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion
Adam Schwenl ey
Robert dift

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

Al aska Police Standards Council
Bryce Johnson

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

SENATE BILL NO 31

"An Act relating to conpensation, nerit increases, and pay
increnents for certain public officials, officers, and enpl oyees
not covered by collective bargaining agreenents; and providing
for an effective date.”

- MOVED SB 31 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 31

SHORT TI TLE: NO STATE EMPLOYEE PAY | NCREASE FOR TWO YEARS
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 14, 2017



01/ 20/ 17 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 17 (S) STA, FIN
03/ 14/ 17 (S) STA AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

ADAM SCHVEEMLEY, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion

Al aska Departnment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Public
O fices Conmm ssion.

ROBERT CLI FT, Appoi ntee

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Public
O fices Conmm ssion.

BRYCE JOHNSQN, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Counci l

Al aska Departnent of Public Safety

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Police
St andar ds Counci | .

LESLI E RI DLE, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Admi nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overview for SB 31.

JAKE METCALFE, representing self
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 31.

KATE SHEEHAN, Director

D vi sion of Personnel and Labor Rel ations

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 31.

W LLI AM M LKS, Senior Assistant Attorney General
Cvil Division

Labor and State Affairs Section

Al aska Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 14, 2017



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 31.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:31:34 PM

CHAIR M KE DUNLEAVY called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators G essel, Coghill, Egan, and Chair Dunl eavy.

CONFI RVATI ON_ HEARI NGS

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion
Al aska Police Standards Council

3:31:51 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that the commttee wll review the
governor's appointees for the Alaska Public Ofices Conmm ssion
(APQOC) and the Al aska Police Standards Council.

3:33: 02 PM

ADAM SCHVEMLEY, Appointee, Alaska Public Ofices Conmm ssion,
Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration, Anchorage, Al aska, reveal ed
that his background is in fire and energency nedical services.
He disclosed that he was appointed to the conmssion's
Li bertarian seat and explained that he has been trying to get
more involved with politics to address financial transparency
for | obbyists.

3:33:46 PM
At ease.

3:34:17 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order. He requested
M. Schweml ey provide the conmmittee with a better understanding
as to how nany seats there are for APOC. He asked M. Schwemnl ey
to provide background as to how he decided to apply for the APOC
position and why he thinks his qualifications lends itself to
t he appoi nt ment.

MR. SCHWEM_LEY answered that there are tw seats for the
Li bertarian Party and two seats for the Republican Party. He
expl ained that the appointnent is based on how nmany votes the
gubernatori al candi dates received fromthe previous el ection.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 14, 2017



He said he considered the Libertarian Party to be nore of a
belief systemrather than an actual party and disclosed that the
party fits closest to his belief system He expressed that he
| ooks at everything based off an individual candidate's policies
rather than what party they are with. He said he did not have
any direct experience for the APOC seat, but noted that he has
i nvestigative experience when working for an oil conpany.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked what his interest was in being appointed
for the APCC seat.

MR. SCHWEMLEY expl ai ned that he wanted to get experience in the
process. He added that he also wanted to revive the trust in the
whol e process for the -everyday citizen regarding financial
transparency from | obbyists and candi dat es.

3:36: 22 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked that M. Schwenl ey expound on issues that
ot her Al askans have confided with him regarding issues that need
to be reviewed or discussed regardi ng APCC.

MR. SCHWEMLEY answered that he wll be focus on conflicts of
interest and where the noney conmes from that is spent on
canpai gns.

SENATOR G ESSEL referenced a description of APOC as foll ows:

The comm ssion exists of five nenbers appointed by the
governor, two from each of the two political parties
whose candidate for governor received the highest
nunber of votes in the nobst recent proceedi ng genera
el ection.

She surmsed that the party designation was determ ned because
t he governor ran as an independent and the other candi date was a
Republican. She added that the fifth nenber is nom nated by
majority vote from the commission's nenbers itself as well as
el ecting the chair.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY recalled that since Governor Wil ker ran as an
i ndependent and not on the Independent Party, the next party
that garnered the nobst votes for governor was the Libertarian
Party and therefore two APOC seats were reserved for the party.

3:38: 28 PM
SENATOR COGHILL concurred that many people feel the sane way
regarding accountability. He conceded that accountability

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 14, 2017



nmeasures have been hotly debated at the capitol as well as
during the canpai gn season. He asked how nmany APOC neetings M.
Schwem ey has attended.

MR. SCHWEMLEY answered that he has not been to an APOC neeti ng.

SENATOR COGHI LL noted that APOC has staff that assists council
menbers with requirenments, laws and regul ations. He asked M.

Schwemley if he will take the tinme to understand the l[aws and
regul ations. He opined that some of APOC s |aws and regul ations
are sonewhat arcane, but are still inportant for public

accountability.

MR, SCHWEMLEY answered that he was going to volunteer sone tine
at the local APOC office to get a better grasp before the first
meeting in June.

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked M. Schwenl ey and said he appreciated
his willingness to step up with "fresh eyes" and the idea of
accountability. He reiterated that the APOC laws that M.
Schwenl ey referenced have been hotly debated by the Legislature
and the political process.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted that M. Schwem ey was appointed to his
seat on March 1, 2017 and expires on March 1, 2022. He detailed
the commttee does not confirm an appointee during the neeting,
but his or her name nobves on to a joint-legislative-floor
session for a vote in April.

He announced that the conmttee would address the appoi ntnent of
M. Robert Cift, appointee for APOC. He detailed that M. dift
was appoi nted on March 23, 2017 and his term expired on March 1,
2020.

3:41: 44 PM
ROBERT CLIFT, Appointee, Alaska Public Ofices Conm ssion,
Al aska Depart ment of Adm ni strati on, Anchor age, Al aska,

di sclosed that he is an appointee for the Libertarian seat and
will be replacing Mark Fish who resigned. He divulged that he
cane to Alaska in 1979 and worked as a school admnistrator in
the "bush.”™ He noted that he has sone political experience from
serving as a city council nenber and as nmayor.

He set forth that he wanted to serve on APOC because the
experience wll allow himto participate in a process where he
will be able to deal fairly with sone of the people that run
afoul with APOC. He stated that APOC s mission is to have

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 14, 2017



transparency for the |obbyists and elected officials, and to
make sure their financial concerns are in keeping with the
statutes that have been witten.

MR. CLIFT concurred with Senator Coghill that sonme statutes are
anbi guous with nultiple interpretations, but that is where APCC
comes in. He explained that APOC usually nakes their decisions
based on an array of statutes as well as how much harm was done.
He added that the conmssion is a hearing for appeals with the
ability to issue advisory opinions to the Legislature to correct
sonme anbiguities.

3:45: 22 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL pointed out that an advisory opinion has the
force of law. She referenced M. dift's APCC application and
noted that he had run for office at l|least four tines, possibly
nore. She asked if he had reviewed APCC s nenbership prohibition
that states, "May not hold or canpaign for elected office or
make contri butions. "

MR. CLIFT confirnmed that he ran unsuccessfully three tinmes for
office. He admtted that he has becone somewhat disillusioned
with party politics and serving on APOC would suit himbetter.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if he was retired. She noted that on
APQCC s board description that the comm ssion had net for 24 days
in 2011 and asked if the tine commtnent would interfere with
any work conmm t nents.

MR. CLIFT replied that he has been retired since 1997 and
serving on APOC woul d not be onerous for him

CHAIR DUNLEAVY corrected his opening remarks regarding M.
Cift, and asked if he was appoi nted on January 23.

MR. CLIFT answered correct. He added that he did attend one
neeting and was inpressed with the professionalism of the people
at the neeting. He said serving on the conmssion is an
i nportant job and one that he could performwell.

3:48:10 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL pointed out that APOC has struggled with both
hol di ng peopl e accountable with penalties as well as preenptive
work to keep people out of trouble.

MR. CLIFT replied that one of his greatest fears while running
for public office was running afoul of APCC. He noted that he

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 14, 2017



appreci ated APOC nmking itself available to assist him to keep
hi m out of trouble.

3:49: 14 PM
SENATOR W LSON joined the comm ttee neeting.

SENATOR COGHILL responded that he appreciated M. dift's
perspective because setting up a canpaign is an enterprise to
itself with sone being huge in detail.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted that M. dift nentioned that he becane
disillusioned in party politics. He pointed out that M. dift
is going to be imersed to sone extent in party politics in the
sense that he will be |ooking at contributions and expenditures.
He asked M. dift how his disillusionment mght carry over in
some form of bi as.

MR. CLIFT concurred that "disillusionnent” is too strong a word.
He asserted that the point of APOC is to nake sure all parties
are on an even playing field wthout penalties that are so
egregious that people are discouraged to enter politics;
however, at the sanme tine the statutes cannot be taken lightly.
He set forth that the process is inproved knowing that APCC is
wat ching out for Alaskans with public records where people can
make determ nations for thenselves about whether candidates or
| obbyi sts are being wi se stewards of the nonies they have been
entrusted wth.

3:53:16 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted that M. dift had nmentioned that he was
glad to see the Libertarian Party advance and asked what he
meant by that statenent.

MR. CLIFT answered that the obvious reason for having a party is
to get people elected. He admtted that he would |ove to see
some Libertarian candidates be elected. He added that he would
like to see options on the ballot where every office has a
Li bertari an candi date. He disclosed that he has becone burnt-out
from working on Libertarians running for office and would not
have a problemto take a vacation fromthe process.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked that as a non-libertarian if M. dift

could assure the conmttee and the public that he will have no
bias carried over in his decisions.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 14, 2017



MR CLIFT replied that he is quite sure that he can be
inmpartial. He set forth that his greatest interest is that
i ndi viduals get a fair hearing.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that the conmttee would next address
the governor's appointee for the Al aska Police Standards Counci
and provided an overview as foll ows:

The mssion of the Al aska Police Standards Council is
to produce and mintain a highly trained and
positively not i vat ed, prof essional |y capabl e of

neeting contenporary |law enforcenment standards of
per f or mance.

He detailed that Bryce Johnson, appointee, was first appointed
to the council on Decenber 11, 2015 and reappointed on March 1,
2017 with a termexpiration of March 1, 2021.

3:56:45 PM

BRYCE JOHNSON, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Council,
Al aska Departnment of Public Safety, Juneau, Al aska, disclosed
that he has been the chief of the Juneau Police Departnment for
the past four years and has been in law enforcenment for 25
years. He added that he has enjoyed his tine on the Police
Standards Council. He said he cares deeply about his profession
and cares deeply about the nen and wonen of |aw enforcenment. He
admtted that l|aw enforcenent has had a rough several years
where sone things were their fault and other things were done
right but were painted wong. He stated that he cared deeply if
sonmeone in law enforcenent is going to be a part of his
prof essi on and does sonething they should not be doing that they
be held accountable as well as people that do it right should be
support ed.

SENATOR COGHILL noted that M. Johnson gets to look at |[|aw
enf orcenent both as a boss as well as a council nenber. He asked
how the council deals wth situations where confidential
information is rel eased by the press.

MR. JOHNSON replied that an officer's departnent will deal wth
a situation first and the council gets involved afterwards. He
noted that the council's decisions are public.

3:59: 29 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL asked that M. Johnson address sone of the
things that the public needs to know to better inform police
of ficers.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 14, 2017



MR. JOHNSON answered that the council |ooked at inplenmenting
i ndustry best practices for hiring with the use of polygraph
tests and psychol ogical evaluations. He disclosed that the
council sought out public coment. He pointed out that the
council has a civilian nenber and continuously seeks out public
i nput before maki ng deci si ons.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked M. Johnson to address the council's
involvenent with the Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSO
Program

4:02: 08 PM

MR. JOHNSON answered that there is a difference between VPSOs
and village police officers. He specified that the council has
jurisdictions over the police officers but not the VPSGCs.

SENATOR EGAN thanked M. Johnson for serving as chief for the
Cty and Borough of Juneau as well as serving on the council.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked M. Johnson to address a bill that was
going through the Legislature relating to a |oophole that allows
police officers to have sexual contact with individuals that are
bei ng i nvesti gat ed.

MR. JOHNSON answered that sexual contact is not allowed and an
officer would be fired and decertified. He noted that he has
seen cases where an officer investigates a crine and a year
| ater they neet soneone at a social engagenent, in those cases
he has declined to take any action because there was no nexus
back to their official duty. He said the way he understands the
bill that Senator G essel referenced would crimnalize the
situation that he previously described. He opined that the
| egislation would bring a whole host of new problens to |aw
enforcement and wurged committee nenbers to look at the
| egislation carefully to avoid unintended consequences from how
the bill is witten.

4. 06: 01 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the council sets standards for |oca
police, state police, |aw enforcenent, nunicipal |aw enforcenent
agencies, and if part of the standards is a profile of a
potential candidate for what they should be |looking for or
m ni mal qualifications.

MR. JOHNSON answered m ni mal qualifications.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 14, 2017



CHAIR DUNLEAVY disclosed that he received a call from a
constituent regarding a nodified standard that a hone-school
student that did not graduate from a nei ghborhood school did not
qgualify for | aw enforcenent consideration.

MR. JOHNSON replied that the intent was to address high school
education equival ency. He specified that soneone hone school ed
woul d have to show equival ency. He noted that his children were
home school ed.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY pointed out that there are no state agencies that
determ ne equivalency for home-school prograns and asked how
m ni mum standards are determned for police officer applicants
t hat have been hone school ed.

MR.  JOHNSON answered that a determnation is mnmade by the
information received during a personal interview

CHAI R DUNLEAVY remarked that the equival ency determ nation would
be subjecti ve.

MR. JOHNSON answered yes. He pointed out that an equivalency is
sought out so there is an objective standard for determning
gr aduat i on.

4:09: 16 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if there was an appeal process if a
determnation was nmade in a first screening that a person did
not meet mnimum qualifications.

MR,  JOHNSON answered that there is an appeal process. He
enphasi zed that folks do their best to nake a fair decision on
what they are looking at. He said the intent is to nake sure the
standard was fair for everyone.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY replied that he appreciated M. Johnson's
explanation. He said he wanted to make sure that one group was
not earmarked as not being potential applicants for being a
police officer.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if the council works with other councils
across the U.S. and what is gleaned that is hel pful.

4:12: 30 PM

MR, JOHNSON answered that the council's executive director is
nmore involved with other councils in the US. He disclosed that
there are national databases for decertification as well as

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 14, 2017



comuni cation between states on training requirenents as
officers nove from state to state. He opined that the
decertification database is inportant to nake sure officers who
get into trouble do not get back into | aw enforcenent.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked M. Johnson to address recruitnment in
Alaska. He inquired if the state's standards and unique
circunstances nake it difficult to recruit. He asked what the
council is doing to enlist "honmegrown" recruits.

MR JOHNSON replied that recruitnent is left up to the
departments. He disclosed that it is difficult to recruit
everywhere around the country. He noted that he always cautions
agai nst |lowering standards to recruit nore people because a hire
may be regretted for years. He opined that the standards in
Juneau are at the right level and admitted that recruiting is
difficult; however, his intent is to recruit people that can
neet the standard, not |ower the standard.

SENATOR COGHILL stated that M. Johnson's coments on
recruitnment standards is inportant for people to hear. He opined
that Alaska's standards are pretty good, but agreed that the
state has a real recruitnment problem due to: distance, cost of
l'iving, and professional opportunities. He asserted that
Al aska's advantages boil down to good communities and |ifestyle.
He noted that he has worked with M. Johnson in the past and has
found him to be form dable when he has a point, does his
homewor k very well, and is professional.

4:16:19 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY opened public testinony.

4:16: 32 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY cl osed public testinony.

He read the follow ng statenment regarding commttee appointnent
recommendat i ons:

In accordance with AS 39.05.080, the Senate State
Affairs Committee revi ewed t he fol |l ow ng and
recommends the appointnments be forwarded to a joint
session for consideration: Adam Schwem ey for APCC,
Robert dift for APOCC, and Bryce Johnson for the
Police Standards Council. This does not reflect an
intent by any of the nenbers to vote for or against
the confirmation of the individual during any further
sessi ons.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 14, 2017



4:17:10 PM
At ease.

SB 31-NO STATE EMPLOYEE PAY | NCREASE FOR 2 YEARS

4:19: 38 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order. He announced
t he considerati on of SB 31.

4:20: 04 PM

LESLIE RIDLE, Deputy  Comm ssi oner, Al aska Depart nent of
Adm ni stration, Juneau, Al aska, provided an overview of SB 31 as
fol |l ows:

* Pay increases could occur in non-covered enployees in the
form of :
o Cost of Living Al owance (COLA),
0 Merit increases (3.5 percent every year for 5 years),
o Pay increnments (3.25 percent every other year),
0 Bonuses.

* Allows the governor to reduce his salary.
» Effective for 2 years: July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2019.

SENATOR COCHI LL asked that Ms. Ridle explain "non-exenpt" and
the difference between "nerit" and "pay increases.”

M5. RIDLE explained that "non-classified" is everybody in state
government who is not in a union and "classified" are in a
union. She specified that SB 31 would only affect the non-
classified enpl oyees whereas bargaining would have to occur with
classified enployees and that is why through statute the state
could only work with the non-cl assified enpl oyees.

She explained that nerit increases are the first-five years for
every year and pay increnents are every-other year. She said
nerit increases occur when going from one step to the next one
every year for five years at 3.5 percent and pay increnents
occur every other year at 3.25 percent.

SENATOR COGHILL commented that term "nmerit" should nean
i ncreased val ue and not automatic. He stated that he is probably
going to agree with the bill, but noted that he does not always
agree with the definitions.

4:23:27 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 14, 2017



M5. RIDLE addressed the two types of non-classified enployees
exenpt and partially exenpt:

e Exenpt:
o Can only be exenpt through statute, (AS 39.25.110);
o Exenpt from Personnel Act and statutory pay plan;
0 Exanples: CGovernor's Ofice, Legislative staff.
e Partially Exenpt:
o Through statute or Personnel Board;
0 Subject to Personnel Act and statutory pay plan;
o Exanpl es: Deputy conm ssioners, directors.

MS. RI DLE addressed who the bill includes as foll ows:

e Enployees not covered wunder a <collective bargaining
agreenent in the executive branch, including: enployees of
boards, comm ssions, authorities, and executive officers;

» Enployees in the |egislative branch;

e Enmployees not covered wunder a <collective bargaining
agreenment of the University of Al aska;

e The governor, |ieutenant governor, departnent heads, and
| egi sl ators.

* Does not include the court system

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if corporations are included in the bill
and noted that sonme corporations are very independent.

M5. RIDLE answered that the corporations are included in the
bill.

She set forth that SB 31 was introduced as part of the
adm nistration's ongoing effort to |l ead by exanple to:

* Reduce state expenditures,
* Address serious budget shortfalls.

4:25:59 PM
She detailed the estimted savings from SB 31 as foll ows:

» Enpl oyees affected:
o 5,000 state enployees are in the executive and
| egi sl ative branches.
o 23 percent of state enployees are in the executive and
| egi sl ative branches.

e Savi ngs:

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- March 14, 2017



o FY2018: $2.3 million ($1 mllion UGF),
o FY2019: $1.9 mllion ($0.8 billion UG,
o Total: $4.2 million ($1.8 mllion UG).

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the governor was inposing a pay freeze
on the next admnistration through md-2019 to capture every-
ot her-year peopl e.

MS. RIDLE answered yes.

SENATOR G ESSEL inquired if pay increases occur throughout the
year on date-of-hire anniversaries.

M5. RIDLE answered yes. She explained that everyday soneone has
a merit anniversary date. She said going from a fiscal year to
the next fiscal year seened to be the <cleanest to the
adm ni strati on.

SENATOR COGHI LL remarked that his biggest criticism is the

bill's intent |anguage. He said the governor is saying the
"l egislature intends" rather than the "governor finds." He said
he would not stop the bill, but noted that he would flag the

intent |anguage for the Senate Finance Committee to review and
encouraged the admnistration to think of a different way of
formulating the bill's intent |anguage.

4:29: 32 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY opened public testinony on SB 31.

4:29:53 PM

JAKE METCALFE, representing self, Anchorage, Alaska, testified
in opposition to SB 31. He noted that he is the executive
director of the Public Safety Enployees Association, but
enphasi zed that he was speaking on his own behalf. He opined
that the legislation is a governor's bill which is setting
| egislative pay and that seened to him to be a separation of
powers issue. He added that the bill does not apply to the court
system as well. He opined that the legislation wll have
uni nt ended consequences such as runni ng good people off.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY cl osed public testinmony on SB 31. He noted that
constituents have asked him to address salary overrides. He
asked that the concept of salary overrides be expl ai ned.

4:35:01 PM

KATE SHEEHAN, Di rector, Division of Personnel and Labor
Rel ations, Al aska Departnment of Adm nistration, Juneau, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 14, 2017



expl ai ned that there are mi sperceptions on salary overrides. She
noted that an individual hired at a higher step gets confused as
a salary override, but the practice is in the personnel rules
and is bargained into collective bargaining agreenents. She
detail ed various scenarios for salary overrides as follows:

* People hired above the entry-level step because they have
exceptional qualifications;

* Recruitnment difficulties;

e Ceographical differential rate changes, but an enployee's
hi gher salary is held harm ess and frozen;

e Position is reclassified to a |ower range, but an
enpl oyee's higher salary is held harm ess and frozen.

M5. SHEEHAN di sclosed that in 2013, Senate Bill 95 allowed the
governor's office to certify hiring at a step higher than the
entry level step due to a policy reason. She noted that the hire
is usually for a high-level position where a director-|evel
salary would not be high enough to attract sonebody due to the
type of work that needs to be perforned.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked that Ms. Sheehan supply the committee with
information on all the salary overrides that have occurred over
the last two years. He asked if the nunber of overrides is
expansi ve or just a handful.

MS. SHEEHAN replied that she would investigate and get back to
the commttee. She noted that there were a lot of salary
overri des, primarily due to geographical-differential rate
changes.

4:37:48 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked that override information be delineated
over the past two years by departnent, division, and the
governor's office that includes details on: override salaries,
what the salaries would have been wthout overrides, and an
expl anation. He noted that sone of his constituents are laid off
and are asking him why the governnent is hiring with a salary
override and is potentially on the verge of reaching into their
pockets via an incone tax.

SENATOR W LSON asked why the court system was left out of the
bill.

M5. RIDLE answered that the exclusion was due to a separation of
powers and detailed as foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 14, 2017



Because the governor has a chance to make a decision
on this bill, if it does pass in some form the
Legislature has a chance to weigh in on the bill
through the commttee process and the floor process

but the courts would not have any way to have a say
other than public testinony and, so we left them out
because of +the separations of power because they
weren't able to participate in the bill.

SENATOR EGAN conment ed that he appreciated what the governor was
trying to do, but did not agree how he was going about it. He
opined that targeting enployees not covered under collective
bargaining will drive themto get into collective bargaining.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked for an explanation why the governor is
putting his salary in the bill for a limted tine. He inquired
why the governor did not consider donating part of his salary
back to the treasury.

M5. RIDLE answered that the cleanest way was to reduce his
salary rather than having to pay for benefits and taxes prior to
denoting back to the treasury.

4:41:36 PM
At ease.

4: 43: 38 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order

SENATOR COGHI LL addressed page 2, line 2 in SB 31, "The
legislature is "elimnating general pay increases." He remarked
that "elimnating" seened like a strong word to him because it
is elimnating for 2 years, fiscal years 2018 and 2019. He
opined that the use of the word "suspendi ng" be considered. He
asked that |egal counsel provide sone insight.

4:44. 47 PM

WLLIAM M LKS, Senior  Assi stant Attorney Ceneral, G vil
Di vision, Labor and State Affairs Section, Al aska Departnent of
Law, Juneau, Al aska, replied that perhaps the word "suspendi ng"
is a better word, but the intent was not to introduce any
anbiguity that a retroactive situation creates. He said the use
of the word "suspend" or another term would be taken under
advi senent as better than "elimnating."

SENATOR COCGHI LL commented that the plain language in the bill is
clear regarding a salary suspension for two years, but voiced

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- March 14, 2017



that he did not |ike the governor speaking for the Legislature
j ust vyet.

4: 46: 17 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report SB 31, version 30-GS1018\ A, from
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fi scal
not e.

4. 46: 28 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that hearing no objection, SB 31 noved
fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

4:46:42 PM
At ease.

4:47: 05 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order. He reiterated
that SB 31, version A has nopved out of comittee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and attached fiscal note.

4:47:18 PM
At ease.

4:47: 56 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order

4:48: 35 PM

There being no further business to come before the commttee
Chair Dunleavy adjourned the Senate State Affairs Comrittee at
4:48 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- March 14, 2017



